

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIFTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
September 27, 2011

SECOND REGULAR SESSION
January 4, 2012 to May 31, 2012

THE EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 28, 2011

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
SECOND REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
AUGUST 30, 2012

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2012

Sec. 2. 36 MRSA §1752, sub-§17-B, as amended by PL 2011, c. 209, §2 and affected by §5, is further amended to read:

17-B. Taxable service. "Taxable service" means the rental of living quarters in a hotel, rooming house or tourist or trailer camp; the transmission and distribution of electricity; the rental or lease of an automobile, a camper trailer, or a motor home, as defined in Title 29-A, section 101, subsection 40; the rental or lease of a pickup truck or van with a gross vehicle weight of less than 26,000 pounds from a person primarily engaged in the business of renting automobiles; the sale of an extended service contract on an automobile that entitles the purchaser to specific benefits in the service of the automobile for a specific duration; and the sale of prepaid calling service.

Sec. 3. Effective date. This Act takes effect October 1, 2012.

Effective October 1, 2012.

CHAPTER 685

H.P. 1347 - L.D. 1826

An Act To Revise the Income Tax Return Checkoffs

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 27 MRSA §8 is enacted to read:

§8. Maine Public Library Fund

There is established the Maine Public Library Fund, an interest-bearing account, referred to in this section as "the fund." The fund receives money deposited by the Treasurer of State pursuant to Title 36, section 5291 and any other money contributed to the fund. The fund is administered by the State Librarian. All money deposited in the fund and the earnings on that money remain in the fund to be used to provide grants to free public libraries for use in providing services identified as priority services by the State Librarian. Money in the fund may also be used for the necessary administrative and personnel costs associated with the management of the fund but may not be deposited in the General Fund or any other fund except as specifically provided by law.

Sec. 2. 36 MRSA §5283, as amended by PL 1989, c. 502, Pt. A, §137, is further amended by adding at the end a new paragraph to read:

This section is repealed December 31, 2012.

Sec. 3. 36 MRSA §5283-A is enacted to read:

§5283-A. Voluntary contribution through checkoffs

1. Minimum threshold for total contributions. The State Tax Assessor may not include on an individual income tax return form a designation for a taxpayer to make a contribution through a checkoff under section 5284, 5284-A, 5285, 5285-A, 5288-A, 5289, 5290 or 5291 unless on returns filed in the prior calendar year the total contributions to the organization or fund to which the contributions are credited under the applicable section are at least:

- A. For calendar year 2012, \$10,000;
- B. For calendar year 2013, \$13,000;
- C. For calendar year 2014, \$16,000;
- D. For calendar year 2015, \$19,000;
- E. For calendar year 2016, \$22,000; and
- F. For calendar years beginning on or after January 1, 2017, \$25,000.

This subsection does not apply to a contribution checkoff that has been on the individual income tax form for less than one year.

2. Cost of administration. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed to each fund or organization by taxpayers making contributions through a checkoff on the individual income tax return form. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the assessor shall deduct the cost of administering the checkoff for the organization or fund and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall forward that amount to the designated organization or fund.

Sec. 4. 36 MRSA §5284, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2003, c. 414, Pt. B, §68 and affected by c. 614, §9, is further amended to read:

2. Contributions credited to Maine Endangered and Nongame Wildlife Fund. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the assessor shall deduct the cost of administering the nongame checkoff, ~~but not exceeding \$5,000 annually,~~ and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall credit that amount to the Maine Endangered and Nongame Wildlife Fund, which is established in Title 12, section 10253.

Sec. 5. 36 MRSA §5284-A, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2003, c. 682, §5, is amended to read:

2. Contributions credited to Companion Animal Sterilization Fund. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the assessor shall deduct the cost of administering the Companion Animal Sterilization Fund checkoff, ~~but not exceeding \$5,000 annually,~~ and re-

port the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall credit the amount to the Companion Animal Sterilization Fund, which is established in Title 7, section 3910-B.

Sec. 6. 36 MRSA §5285, sub-§2, as amended by PL 1993, c. 600, Pt. A, §280, is further amended to read:

2. Contributions credited to the Maine Children's Trust Incorporated. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the State Tax Assessor shall deduct the cost of administering the Maine Children's Trust Incorporated checkoff, ~~but not exceeding \$2,000 annually~~, and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall forward that amount to the Maine Children's Trust Incorporated, which is established in Title 22, chapter 1058.

Sec. 7. 36 MRSA §5285-A, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. TT, §2 and affected by §3, is further amended to read:

2. Contributions credited to the Bone Marrow Screening Fund. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the State Tax Assessor shall deduct the cost of administering the Bone Marrow Screening Fund checkoff, ~~but not exceeding \$2,000 annually~~, and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall forward that amount to the Bone Marrow Screening Fund.

Sec. 8. 36 MRSA §5288-A, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 2007, c. 674, §1 and affected by §2, is amended to read:

1. Maine Military Family Relief Fund. When filing a return, a taxpayer entitled to a refund under this Part may designate that a portion of that refund be paid into the Maine Military Family Relief Fund established in Title 37-B, section 158. A taxpayer who is not entitled to a refund under this Part may contribute to the Maine Military Family Relief Fund by including with that taxpayer's return sufficient funds to make the contribution. The contribution may not be less than ~~\$4~~ \$5. Each individual income tax return form must contain a designation in substantially the following form: "The Maine Military Family Relief Fund: (←) ~~\$1~~, () \$5, () \$10, () \$25 or () Other \$... ."

Sec. 9. 36 MRSA §5289, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 519, Pt. RRR, §1 and affected by §3, is amended to read:

§5289. Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund voluntary checkoff

1. Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund. When filing a return, a taxpayer entitled to a refund under this Part may designate that a

portion of that refund be paid into the Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund established in Title 37-B, section 504, subsection 6. A taxpayer who is not entitled to a refund under this Part may contribute to the Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund by including with that taxpayer's return sufficient funds to make the contribution. The contribution may not be less than ~~\$4~~ \$5. Each individual income tax return form must contain a designation in substantially the following form: "Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund: (←) ~~\$1~~, () \$5, () \$10, () \$25 or () Other \$... ."

2. Contributions credited to Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the State Tax Assessor shall deduct the cost, ~~up to \$2,000 annually~~, of administering the Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund checkoff and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall forward that amount to the Maine Veterans' Memorial Cemetery Maintenance Fund.

Sec. 10. 36 MRSA §5290, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 672, §3 and affected by §§6 and 8, is amended to read:

§5290. Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund; voluntary checkoff

1. Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund. When filing a return, a taxpayer entitled to a refund under this Part may designate that a portion of that refund be paid into the Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund established in Title 22, section 1700-A. A taxpayer who is not entitled to a refund under this Part may contribute to the Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund by including with that taxpayer's return sufficient funds to make the contribution. The contribution may not be less than ~~\$4~~ \$5. Each individual income tax return form must contain a designation in substantially the following form: "Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund: (←) ~~\$1~~, () \$5, () \$10, () \$25 or () Other \$.... ."

2. Contributions credited to Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the State Tax Assessor shall deduct the cost, ~~up to \$2,000 annually~~, of administering the Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund checkoff and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall forward that amount to the Maine Asthma and Lung Disease Research Fund.

Sec. 11. 36 MRSA §5291 is enacted to read:

§5291. Maine Public Library Fund; voluntary checkoff

1. Maine Public Library Fund. When filing a return, a taxpayer entitled to a refund under this Part may designate that a portion of that refund be paid into the Maine Public Library Fund established in Title 27, section 8. A taxpayer who is not entitled to a refund under this Part may contribute to the Maine Public Library Fund by including with that taxpayer's return sufficient funds to make the contribution. The contribution may not be less than \$5. Each individual income tax return form must contain a designation in substantially the following form: "Maine Public Library Fund: () \$5, () \$10, () \$25 or () Other \$...."

2. Contributions credited to Maine Public Library Fund. The State Tax Assessor shall determine annually the total amount contributed pursuant to subsection 1. Prior to the beginning of the next year, the State Tax Assessor shall deduct the cost of administering the Maine Public Library Fund checkoff and report the remainder to the Treasurer of State, who shall forward that amount to the Maine Public Library Fund.

Sec. 12. Report and review. By January 15, 2017, the Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Bureau of Revenue Services shall submit a report to the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over taxation matters identifying the amount contributed to each income tax checkoff under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 36, chapter 831 over the previous 5 years and the cost of administering the checkoffs, and listing any checkoffs removed from the individual tax return pursuant to Title 36, section 5283-A. By April 1, 2017, the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over taxation matters shall review the report and may submit a bill to the 128th Legislature to implement any recommendations resulting from the review.

Sec. 13. Appropriations and allocations. The following appropriations and allocations are made.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF

Revenue Services, Bureau of 0002

Initiative: Provides a one-time appropriation for the administrative costs of adding one additional tax checkoff for the Maine Public Library Fund and eliminating the checkoff for political parties.

GENERAL FUND	2011-12	2012-13
All Other	\$0	\$10,500
<hr/>		
GENERAL FUND TOTAL	\$0	\$10,500

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF

DEPARTMENT TOTALS	2011-12	2012-13
GENERAL FUND	\$0	\$10,500
<hr/>		
DEPARTMENT TOTAL - ALL FUNDS	\$0	\$10,500

LIBRARY, MAINE STATE

Maine Public Library Fund N131

Initiative: Allocates funds to provide grants to free public libraries in the State.

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS	2011-12	2012-13
All Other	\$0	\$10,000
<hr/>		
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS TOTAL	\$0	\$10,000

LIBRARY, MAINE STATE

DEPARTMENT TOTALS	2011-12	2012-13
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS	\$0	\$10,000
<hr/>		
DEPARTMENT TOTAL - ALL FUNDS	\$0	\$10,000

SECTION TOTALS	2011-12	2012-13
GENERAL FUND	\$0	\$10,500
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS	\$0	\$10,000
<hr/>		
SECTION TOTAL - ALL FUNDS	\$0	\$20,500

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 686

S.P. 650 - L.D. 1865

An Act To Enhance Career and Technical Education

Mandate preamble. This measure requires one or more local units of government to expand or modify activities so as to necessitate additional expenditures